
 

City of North Miami Beach 
Community Redevelopment Agency  

 
 
 
 
 

 
Community Redevelopment Agency Board of Commissioners: 

 
   Chairman George Vallejo 

     Commissioner Anthony DeFillipo 
    Commissioner Phyllis S. Smith 
   Commissioner Beth E. Spiegel 

Commissioner Frantz Pierre 
      Commissioner Barbara Kramer 
    Commissioner Marlen Martell 

 
Date:
  

                  January 23rd, 2014 

Time:
 

                 6:00 PM   

Location:
   17011 NE 19th Avenue, North Miami Beach, Florida 33162 

    2nd Floor Council Chambers, City Hall 

 

 
AGENDA 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call 

2. Approval of Minutes: December 17th, 2013 

3. Façade Application:  Womens & Teens Health Clinic 

4. Next CRA Board Meeting: February 27th, 2014 

5. Adjournment   



CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH 
BOARDS AND COMMITTEES MEETING MINUTES 

 
NAME OF BOARD/COUNCIL: COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS   
NAME OF PERSON PREPARING SUMMARY:  K. MCGUIRE, PROTOTYPE 
NAMES OF STAFF, AND INVITED GUESTS PRESENT: CRA COORDINATOR RASHA CAMEAU, CITY 
MANAGER / CRA DIRECTOR ANA GARCIA, CITY ATTORNEY DARCEE SIEGEL, ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANT KEVIN CROWDER, CHRIS BROWN, SHARON MCCORMICK 
BOARD MEMBERS: COMMISSIONER/CHAIR VALLEJO, COMMISSIONER DEFILLIPO, 
COMMISSIONER KRAMER, COMMISSIONER MARTELL, COMMISSIONER PIERRE, COMMISSIONER 
SMITH, COMMISSIONER SPIEGEL 
 
TYPE OF MEETING: REGULAR MEETING DATE: December 17, 2013 
          
MINUTES 

 
AGENDA ITEM 1 - Call to Order / Roll call: 5:00 p.m. 
Roll Call: Roll was taken at 5:21 p.m. It was noted a quorum was present. 

 
AGENDA ITEM 2 – Approval of Minutes: August 27, 2013. A motion was made, and duly seconded, to approve 
the minutes of the August 27, 2013 meeting. In a voice vote, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 

 
AGENDA ITEM 3 – Approval of Minutes: October 24, 2013. A motion was made, and duly seconded, to 
approve the minutes of the October 24, 2013 meeting. In a voice vote, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 

 
AGENDA ITEM 4 – Review and Approval of the Economic Development Consultant Service Agreement: 
Redevelopment Management Associates (RMA). Ms. Cameau explained that since the previous year, Economic 
Development Consultant Kevin Crowder’s firm has merged with Redevelopment Management Associates (RMA). 
The updated agreement also includes a new scope of services, which includes an additional $20,000 for branding, 
marketing, and discussion of the City’s and CRA’s identities as economic development issues. The contract total is 
$45,000, with a monthly payment of $3750.  
 
The Board members discussed the expense associated with branding and marketing, which will be provided by 
RMA. This expense includes 30 hours per month allocated to marketing, redevelopment, special event 
programming, and public/private partnership assistance. Mr. Crowder advised that the 2013-14 CRA 
Implementation Plan will support both City-wide and CRA-specific branding efforts and the City’s Strategic Plan. 
The CRA Implementation Plan is intended to aggressively publicize incentives and efforts within the CRA, 
including branding and marketing. City Manager Ana Garcia emphasized the importance of a seamless marketing 
effort between the CRA and the City as a whole in order to encourage economic development.  
 
The Board discussed amendments to the scope of services, such as the inclusion of some services in the scope rather 
than as potential additional expenses.  

 
AGENDA ITEM 5 – Review & Discussion of 2013-14 CRA Implementation Plan. Mr. Crowder showed the 
Board a PowerPoint presentation reviewing the CRA Implementation Plan, which seeks to proceed with a market-
driven effort to assist small business, create jobs, and attract development within the CRA. Areas of focus in 2013 
included the following: 

• Promote an identity that encourages business investment; 
• Attract new business and major capital investment; 
• Assist small businesses; and 
• Policy decisions.  

 
Mr. Crowder reviewed some of the previous year’s accomplishments, including adoption of a tenant improvement 
grant program and a tax increment financing (TIF) rebate, proposal of a mixed-use overlay zoning district, 
improvements on 163rd Street, and repeal of a waiting period attached to zoning changes, among others. These 



City of North Miami Beach Community Redevelopment Agency 
December 17, 2013 
Page 2 
 
changes have led to increased interest in the City by developers and investors. The addition of RMA’s services to 
the proposed 2014 contract will bring a focus on marketing, incentives, CRA planning, urban design, and other 
significant aspects of the implementation plan.  
 
The 2013-14 Implementation Plan will be presented to the Redevelopment Advisory Board in December and 
brought back to the CRA Board in January, including timelines, tasks, and budgets for each item included in the 
plan. Mr. Crowder briefly reviewed these items, which include a realistic five-year finance plan, development of an 
identity for the City and improvement of its image and reputation, public relations and marketing, and public realm 
improvements. He emphasized the need for a mixed-use zoning overlay district, and noted that the potential Tri-Rail 
station on 164th Street could act as a catalyst for additional redevelopment and investment within the City and the 
CRA. He concluded that ways to assist small businesses include working with Code Enforcement, parking and 
infrastructure issues, and the façade and tenant improvement programs, among others.  
 
Sharon McCormick of RMA addressed the issue of branding as it relates to economic development, citing examples 
of successful branding efforts the firm has achieved in other cities. She described this process as the creation of a 
sense of place, which can be achieved by research into the areas, outreach through social media, and special events 
and activities within the communities. Mr. Crowder reiterated that support of a mixed-use zoning overlay would be 
an important next step for the CRA and the City.  
 
The Board members discussed the presentation and the CRA Implementation Plan, including identification of how 
North Miami Beach might be successfully branded and the importance of bringing in new business. It was noted that 
the City’s canal is considered its best underused asset. Mr. Crowder emphasized the importance of partnership 
between the CRA and the City’s planning, community development, and capital improvement efforts, which will 
identify the infrastructure necessary to support new business and growth. Ms. Garcia noted that representatives of 
these City Departments also work with RMA, and confirmed that the City’s budget will comprehensively address 
these needs.  
 
The members also discussed a timeline for the CRA Implementation Plan and performance measures that will show 
the Plan’s progress. Mr. Crowder explained that a 12-month work plan, including specific tasks, assignments, and 
deadlines, will be developed into an implementation matrix, which will be presented to the Board on a monthly basis 
in 2014. Chris Brown of RMA cited examples of their success in the city of Oakland Park over the past two years, 
including the development and branding of that city’s culinary arts district and the attraction of related business and 
industry.  
 
Ms. Garcia added that it is important to invest in infrastructure and parking throughout the City as well as within the 
CRA in order to attract economic development. Improvements begun within the CRA are likely to spread 
throughout the City. Mr. Crowder noted that a great deal of the work done over the previous year has focused on 
driving new investment through the implementation of incentives, such as the TIF rebate program; next steps 
include removing obstacles in the planning and zoning process. He cautioned that new development will not occur 
right away, and that a City-wide branding and strategic planning effort is very important in addition to branding and 
planning within the CRA. Ms. Garcia added that special events will draw attention to the foundation for 
improvements being laid within the City, which can attract investors to participate in the early stages of 
redevelopment.  
 
Commissioner Martell remarked that the combination of schools, parks, and water often contributes to urban 
development. She pointed out that these attributes exist on or near Hanford Boulevard, but have not been fully 
developed or connected as part of a city center in the past. Commissioner Spiegel noted that a Healthy Heart Walk is 
planned along the canal in February 2014, which could contribute to the branding of the area.  
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Smith, and duly seconded, to accept the contract with the [two amendments] 
as stated. In a voice vote, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
Ms. Cameau noted that the CRA Implementation Plan will be reviewed further with the Redevelopment Advisory 
Board and will be presented to the CRA Board for approval in January 2014. Mr. Crowder added that the Board 
members will be able to review the Plan and reach out to him with further comments and suggestions prior to the 



City of North Miami Beach Community Redevelopment Agency 
December 17, 2013 
Page 3 
 
next meeting.  

 
AGENDA ITEM 6 – Review & Approval of Interior Renovation Application Guidelines. Ms. Cameau recalled 
that this tenant improvement grant program will provide a 50% match of the property owner’s tenant improvement 
allowance up to $10/sq. ft., with a maximum grant of $25,000. This program may be used in conjunction with the 
façade grant program, with the combined grant not to exceed $25,000; however, the CRA Board may increase this 
maximum amount at their discretion. The grant will be available to new businesses and to existing businesses that 
are expanding by more than 50%. Eligible improvements are those that would remain if a tenant moved out of the 
property. Should the property owner sell within four years of a project’s completion date, the grant must be repaid to 
the CRA.  
 
The Board members discussed the guidelines, including the possibility that consecutive tenants may wish to make 
improvements to a given property. It was clarified that the $25,000 maximum is per property rather than per tenant, 
although Mr. Crowder noted that this could be changed if the Board wished, as it could limit the improvement 
available to a strip center. Chair Vallejo emphasized that the Board would need discretion to make exceptions in 
special cases, such as more than one business existing on a given property; however, Commissioner Smith pointed 
out that owners have taken advantage of grant programs in the past to make improvements to multiple bays, and 
stated that the Board should be able to limit the amount granted to individual storefronts on the same property. City 
Attorney Darcee Siegel clarified that as the program is currently written, property owners may allocate their grant 
funds to multiple tenants. 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Spiegel, seconded by Commissioner Smith, to approve the interior renovation 
application guidelines. 
 
Ms. Siegel read the following into the record: 
 CRA Policy Resolution 2013-6: A resolution of the North Miami Beach Community Redevelopment 
 Agency Board approving incentive guidelines for the interior improvement grant program, authorizes the 
 CRA Executive Director to take any and all actions necessary to implement such guidelines in accordance 
 with the Board’s intentions and approvals, and providing an effective date.  
 
In a voice vote, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).  

 
AGENDA ITEM 7 – Next CRA Board Meeting: January 23, 2014. It was noted that this meeting will convene at 
6 p.m. 

 
AGENDA ITEM 8 – Adjournment. There being no further business to come before the Board at this time, the 
meeting was adjourned at 6:28 p.m. 
 

































































6,500.00                   

9,362.00                   

7,275.00                   

Total Cost of Project 6,500.00                   

Requested Grant Amount 3,250.00                   

A & J Asphalt & Pavers Corporation

Atlantic Southern & Paving

1800 Asphalt

Asphalt, seal coat and stripe parking lot

Asphalt, seal coat and stripe parking lot

Asphalt, seal coat and stripe parking lot

Paving Contractor

North Miami Beach CRA Façade Improvement Grant Application List of Bona Fide Bids

Name of Business:  Women & Teens Healthcare 16880 NE 19th Avenue, NMB, Fl

Service Cost







 


	UDate:U                  January 23rd, 2014
	UTime:U                 6:00 PM
	Women&teensquotes.pdf
	Sheet1

	Implementation Schedule (2).pdf
	Sheet1

	2014 Implementation Plan.pdf
	1. Focus Area: Organizational and Operational Enhancements
	2.2.1. Goal: Capitalize on the growing perception that North Miami Beach is “Open for Business
	2.2.1.1. Build support for the mixed use zoning program;
	2.2.1.2. Promote all available CRA tools;
	2.2.1.3. Identify and promote local redevelopment success stories;
	2.2.1.4. Promote the future Tri-Rail Coastal Station.


	Implementation Schedule (2).pdf
	Sheet1


	Agenda 1-23-14.pdf
	UDate:U                  January 23rd, 2014
	UTime:U                 6:00 PM


